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County of Alameda, General Services Agency – Purchasing

RFP No. 900977, Addendum No. 2

COUNTY OF ALAMEDA

QUESTIONS & ANSWERS
to

RFP No. 901654
for

AB109 Direct Services: Family Reunification
Summary of Q&A Submitted

Networking/Bidders Conference held on July 2, 2018
	This County of Alameda, General Services Agency (GSA), Questions & Answers (Q&A) Document has been electronically issued to potential bidders via e-mail.  E-mail addresses used are those in the County’s Small Local Emerging Business (SLEB) Vendor Database or from other sources.  If you have registered or are certified as a SLEB, please ensure that the complete and accurate e-mail address is noted and kept updated in the SLEB Vendor Database.  This Q&A Document will also be posted on the GSA Contracting Opportunities website located at http://www.acgov.org/gsa/purchasing/bid_content/ContractOpportunities.jsp.


Alameda County is committed to reducing environmental impacts across our entire supply chain. 

If printing this document, please print only what you need, print double-sided, and use recycled-content paper.

The following Sections have been modified to read as shown below.  Changes made to the original RFP document are in bold print and highlighted, and deletions made have a strike through.

Responses to Written Questions

Q1) According to the RFP, reimbursements will go back to the Contractor as a paid per client reimbursement.  Can the County explain how that will work?  For example, if a Contractor only has two clients a month, is that how much the County would pay out to the Contractor?  Are payments based solely on the number of client referred?
A1) The budget template provided is designed to calculate a Cost Per Participant [=(Total Direct Costs + Stipends & Performance Incentives)/Number Of Clients To Be Served], which is separate from indirect cost.  The indirect costs will be reimbursed to the Contractor on a monthly basis.  
In terms of the Cost Per Particpant, the County will be exercising performance-based contracting.  There will be a number of metrics (e.g., performance measures, outcomes, etc.) for each client referred.  On a monthly basis, Contractors will be paid out on metrics achieved per client.  For example, a Contractor might be paid out for how many referrals were assessed, how many referrals were enrolled, how many enrollees completed a specific metric, etc.  For more information, see pages 23-25 of the RFP (DELIVERABLES and REPORTS.  While some metrics are listed in the RFP, others may be negotiated with awarded Bidders.
Q2) Can the County explain how Contractor reimbursements will not fluctuate every month based on the vacillating population in programs?
A2) The County does expect monthly reimbursements to fluctuate based on the referrals and outcomes.  There not be a flat reimbursement every month for twelve months.
Q3) Is there a chance that Contractor will not use the entire amount awarded based on the reimbursement system?
A3) Yes.  The County cannot guarantee the number of referrals; therefore, the County cannot guarantee that the entire amount awarded will be paid out either.   Contracts resulting from this RFP will be based on the number of clients actually served and performance measures/outcomes achieved by those clients.  
Q4) If the number of services provided depend on referrals, what does the County suggest Contractors do regarding the lack of control over referrals?
A4) Unfortunately, the County cannot guarantee a minimum (or maximum) number of referrals.  Bidders are encouraged to propose (in their bid response) how they intend outreach to the target population.
Q5) Can the county clarify if referral and enrollment mean the same thing?
A5) No. The referral would come from an Alameda County Probation Department (ACPD) Deputy Probation Officer (DPO) to the Contractor.  Enrollment into the Contractor’s program would happen after the referral, based on the needs and/or assessment determined by the Contractor’s intake process.
Q6) Regarding the age range, can the County confirm if Bidders can target a specific age? For example, can a Bidder choose to focus on the age range of 18-25 years old?
A6) Yes.  Bidders can choose to focus on an age range as long as the clients are adults (which is categorized by Probation as 18 and over).   Bid responses will be scored and ranked as set forth in the RFP. 
Q7) Can the County clarify is there is any room for pilot programs?
A7) The RFP is only for a one-year contract (although, there may be options for renewals).  Therefore, the County is not allowing any start-up funds for programs. 
A “pilot program” could be allowed as long as the Bidder meets all the qualifications, requirements, and specification in the RFP (e.g., Bidder Qualifications, Program Framework, Administrative Requirements, Specific Requirements, etc.).  However, such a pilot program would not be eligible to request or obtain start-up funds for their program.   Regardless, all Bidders shall provide evidence why their proposed program works or will work.  Bid responses will be scored and ranked as set forth in the RFP.
Q8) Can the County clarify if funding is available for hire up services that bidders would like to use for the program? 
A8) No.  There will be no funding for hire up services.
Q9) Page 12 of the RFP, Section C (BIDDER QUALIFICATIONS), Item 1.a., states that the Bidder and/or its Principal:

Shall be regularly and continuously engaged in the business of providing Family Reunification programs to criminal justice-involved, adult clients and their family members for at least three years.
If, for example, a vendor has been servicing the target population for five years, but the services provided span a wide array of sectors with only a little family reunification, would that vendor meet the Bidder qualification above?  And what if a potential Bidder partners with an organization that meets the requirement above, would that be acceptable?

A9) Bidders do not have to be solely focused on family reunification services (although Bidders will be evaluated on their experience providing family reunification services).  In the example above, a vendor that has been providing family reunification services for at least three years—even if that service comprises only 15% of their total billable services—would meet the requirement.
The requirement in questions does have to be met by the Bidder (or lead prime Bidder).  Bidder Qualifications cannot be met by a subcontractor or a collaborating vendor.  The County does allow vendors to work collaboratively, but as stated on page 12 of the RFP, Section C (BIDDER QUALIFICATIONS), Item 1:
Collaborating vendors must name a single, lead prime Bidder that will submit on behalf of collaborating vendors.

In addition, Item 1.a.(2) further clarifies:

If bidding as a collaboration, the minimum years of experience must be met by the lead prime Bidder.

Q10) Can the County confirm that if a Bidder does not meet one of the Bidder Qualifications, would that be an immediate disqualification?
A10) A Bidder or lead prime Bidder that does not meet the BIDDER QUALIFICATIONS found on pages 12-13 of the RFP would be subject to disqualification. 
Q11) Is the Bidders Conference mandatory?
A11) No.
Q12) Can the County confirm the range of award funding? 
A12) Funding information can be found on page 12 of the RFP, and has been included in the table below:
	FUNDING INFORMATION

	Estimated Total Funding per Year
	$2,000,000

	Award Ceiling
	$500,000/year

	Award Floor
	$25,000/year

	Length of Initial Contract Period
	1 year with (with options to renew)


Q13) If, after all Bidders are awarded and funded, the $2,000,000 total is not reached, what will the County do with the remaining funds?   Will that money be distributed amongst the already awarded Bidders?
A13) Potentially, ACPD could go back to the CCPEC to discuss the matter.  As well, the County does reserve its right to make adjustments to awarded Bidders. 
Q14) Can the County clarify, how Bidders should account for the performance-based metrics budgeting in their proposals?
A14) Bidders can use the Budget Form Template form provided in the Bid Response Packet that separates Direct Costs from Indirect Costs and includes a Cost Per Participant.  Bidders can also use the award floor and ceiling when deciding the number of clients to be served. Bidders are encouraged to propose a budget based on the number of clients their organization can actually serve, within the funding parameters.
Q15) The target population is divided by cities and regions.  If a Bidder wants to propose services in one or two of the regions, and considering the $2,000,000 limit and $500,000 ceiling, are Bidders limited to the percentage of the region?  For example, if Hayward is 12% of the region, are Bidders expected to submit a bid for 12% of the $2,000,000?
A15) The County provided a table of Geographic Distribution (page 6 of the RFP) for informational purposes.  Bidders will identify the region or regions they can serve as part of their bid response and, when scoring, the County will take into account the percentage of clients a Bidder is able to serve.  
The County did not, however, allocate a specific percentage of funding per geographic region.  Regardless of how many regions or how many clients a Bidder proposes to serve, the maximum award amount for any Bidder is still $500,000.  
Q16) Can the County clarify where the percentages for the regions came from? Can the County provide actual numbers?
A16) Please see page 5 of the RFP for more information regarding the target population.  As stated in the RFP, the percentages are based on the 11,051 realigned clients from the Year Six of Realignment (FY16/17).  The 11, 051 represents the total realigned clients, not the amount of individuals that could be referred to vendors. 
Q17) Where on the website can Bidders find the answers for the Q&A?
A17) The Q&A document will be posted on the County’s Current Contracting Opportunities website:  http://acgov.org/gsa_app/gsa/purchasing/bid_content/contractingdetail.jsp?BID_ID=1981
For all Bidders Conference attendees that signed in and provided a valid email address, an email should be sent to them directly with the Q&A.   The Q&A can also be found in the EZSourcing Portal. 
Q18) If a Bidder is awarded a contract and for some reason after the award can no longer perform duties and drops out, can the County clarify if there are any resulting negative effects or penalties?
A18) A situation like that would be handled and determined on a case-by-case basis.  
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